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HISTORY NF CECIL COUNTY. 273

v }:ear, which is to be found among the papers in porseasion
of the county eommissioners, shows that there were three
two-wheeled carriages in Charlestown at this time, one of
which belonged to Rev. Jolm Hamilton. These eld-fash-
ioned two-wheeled carringes weresometimes called “ chaira”

! \ The whale number of theseearriages returned in the county
in 1757 waa thirty-four. Five years afterwards they had
incrensed to forty-five. In 1761 the commissioners ordered
that the rent of each peddler's stali and drinking booth,
when rented by citizens of the town should not exceed 5a.
The records of the commissioners show that the keeper of
tha storehouse, during the years from 1749 fo 1754, had
tailed to account for two hundred and fifty hogsheads that
had been stored in it In other words, he was a defaultar
to the extent of £12}.

The levy list for 1768 shows that the taxables, as returned
by the constable for that year, nunbered eighty-nine, of
whom twelve wers negro slaves. The whols population of
the town at this time was probably about three hundred and
fifty. In 1771 the taxables numbered one hundred and
two, of whom seventeen wera slaves. In 1774 they num-
bered ninety-two, of whom eleven were slaves In each of
thesa years, the Rev. John Hamilton is returned as one of
the taxablea and the owner of one of the slaves.

Charlestown and Baltimere are nearly of the same age,
and for a long time after the former was laid out they were
rivals, end continued to be such until about the time of tha
Revolutionary war, when the latter, owing to the trade with
the western part of the State and the superior facilitiea for
foreign commerce, outatripped the former, and it gradually
sank into obscurity and neglect. Many of the inhabitanta
who had ~rected substantial houses in Charlestown tore them
down and shipped the material to Baltimore, where it was
used in the construction of other buildings; thus the sue-
cessful rival gained what the unsuccessful one lost, and as
the one diminished, the other increased in size.
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and other smigranta to Bouth Carolins,

It seems proper in this conuection to notice an error or Tz Presbyterian church at the head of Broad Creek,
two into which Mr. Scharf has inadvertently fallen in his near Bethel, there is reason to believe, was foundod by the
History of Maryland, when writing of Charlestown, *of Lawsons and Alexandera from Society and New Munsier. » E
which,” he says, “ no vestige now remains, unless possibly a fow of whom Tad sattled in that neighborhood. The mee =7
chimney or two, but of which the story is told that about ing-house stood near the old graveyard, the site of which
1750 a British merchant having some money to invest and marked by some old tonbstones which stand in the field » .
full of faith in the Maryland province, came over in person fow yarda from tha State Line and & short distance cast of 0
to select the place to put his money where it would tura over . Bethel hurch, at what is known as the Pivot Bridg= The
most rapidly. Heexamined Annapolis, Baltimore, Chester- creck, the name of which was applied to this chun:l':l, has
tawn, Elkridge and Oxford, and after mature deliberation, been nearly obliterated by the construction of the Chesa-
put his mouey in town lots in Charlestown, as the most peake and Delaware Canal, the channel of which is identical
promising site of all the great cities of the future.”* Un- with the channel of the creek.
fortunately for the truth of thia serap of history Charlestown, This church is notable on aceount of ita failure. Of_'-'-
by the census of 1881, contains 235 inhabitants, 48 dwelling- early history but very little is known, except that in 1'4 3 I‘?Z}
houses, a church and school-house, and a number of shopa. Richard Thompson leased an acre of land to Samuyel Alexs

A diligent search among the recerds of the town, which ander and Peter Bouchell for twenty-one vesrs, for the use
have alwaya been kept in books separate from the other land &f the Presbyierian congregation at that place, for an an- .
records of the county, reveals no evidence that the English nual rent of one ear of Indian corn. The first pastor wsl_Ih‘ i
merchant, nor any other person, ever held more than two or Rev. Alexander Hutchinson, a Scoteh Irish Presbyteris.
three town lots at one and the same time. who was instafled in 1723. It appears to have alwsyy

' *geharls History of Marsland, Vol. L, page 63.
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been  feeble, for during the most of his pastorate he
was directed by the Preshytery to supply the Preshy-
terian church on Elk River, as the Rock congregation
was then called. Peter Bouchell was one of the first
elders, a3 was probably Samuel Alexander, and cer-
taiuly also Jobs Brevard. Thiz church seoms {o have been
almost, if pot quite, extinet in 1740, when Rey. George
Whitefield visited Bohemia Manor. Most of its members
Probably juined the Forest Church in Delaware, when that
church was organized in 1750. Whitefield first visited this
gection of country in 1739, as is stated in hig journal, & copy
of which, containing his sutograph, may be seen in the
library of Pennsylvania Historics] Society. On the 34 of
December of that year he preached at North East ; but Iittle
notice having been given, there were only nbout 1,500 per-
Bong present. On the 14th of Mey, 1740, he addressed a
large meeting at Nottingham, after which he went south,
visiting Georgia and the Caralings, and retarned the follow.
ing autumn and preached at Hottingham sgain to an
audience of 8,000 persons, After this he visited Bohemia
Manor, and on the 24th of Kovember preached at the
house of Mrs, Bayard to an sudience of 2,000 persons, He
does not mention the Broad Creek church in his journal,
from which it is inferred that the church had censed io
exist at that Lime, or was so very fesble that it did not
exist much longer.

It was no doubt during this interval, when journeying
from Nottingham to Bohemis, that Whitefield stopped at
Elkton, or the Head of Elk, as the place was then called H
for the town, if thers was one then, was so small that it had
oo name. Tradition says that he preached to o large audi-
ence at this place, which was assembled under the shade of
an oak tree that stood a short distance west of Bow street,
80d probably about & hundred yards north from the river.
While he was preaching hers, some of his audience for some
reazon are said to have started away from the crowd he was
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the meadow across the brook, a short distance west of the
ather one, and in 1744, presented a call to the Samyel -~
Finley* who, in that year, bocame their pastor. Such was
the bitterness of feeling engendered by the schism that rent
this church in twain that each party kept its church Orga-
hization intact ill about 1792, when most of those whe had
taken an active part in the coutroversy having died and
tie baving somewhat mellowed the feelings of their de-
scendants, the iwo congregations were reunited. Mr. Fin-
ley was & native of the county Armaugh, in Ireland, and
on¢ of the most distinguislied scholars and divines of the
eighieenth century. He was pastor of the New Bide Not-.
tingham Church for seventeen Years &nd Jounder of N___m— -
ingham Academy, st which some of the most eminent
Physicians, statesmen and divines of the eighteenth century
received their early education. Mr. Finley remained in
charge of tlis church, til] 1761, when he was chosen Presi-?
dent of the College of New Jersey, now called Princston
College, and shortly sfterwards removed there.

Among the many distinguished men that received their
early education at Mr. Finleys Nottingham school, the w
names of Dr. Benjamin Rush, so well known by his connee- /
tion with the Univemsity of Pennsylvania, and the Rev. /
John Ewing, who was one of the commissioners that assisted
in adjusting the boundary lines between Marvland ang
Terinsylvania, and who was bom in the Eighth district of
this county, not far from Porters Bridge, are the most emi-
nent,

The location of the site of the building in which My
Finley taught school is involved in ohscurity, but there are
gome reasons that indicete that it may have been a short

* Rev. Samuel Finley was a brother of Rev. James Finley, who was
Pastor of the churches of the Rock and Head of Elk. €. B, Finley, one
of the elders of the Elkttog Presbyterian church, is & great-grand neplew,
and Miss Marths Finley, the distinguished anthoress, is & greatgrand
miecs of thess distingu'shed men,
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addressing, and he is eaid to have cried out, in stentorian
tones, “The devil's at Your heols!” It was owing to the
preaching of this grest evangelist that the firat Preshyter-
ien church was organized in Elkton, for the next year (1741}
William Alexander and Araminta_his wife, deeded a1 acre
ommﬁ.ﬁel‘“a had preached the
Yyear before, to *Robert Lucas, Zebulon Ho]linguworth,
Thomas Ricketts and Robert Evans, of Cecil County, snd
David Barr, of New Castle County, upon which io build a
meeting-house convenient for people assembling to worship
God and hear His Word preached, and for the use of such
mtinisiers of the Protestant persuasion or religion, and par-
ticularly the Presbiyterian ministers, as sha]] from time to
time nitend there g Preach and officiate in the service and
worship of Almighty God.” This deed contained a stipyla-
tion that il the meeling-house censed to be occupied as &
place of worship for three consecutive years, the land was
to revert to the grantor. It wes owing to this stipulation,
and the fact that the Presbyterian cengregation st Elkton
afterward became quite small and feeble, 8o much 8o that
most of the members joined the church at Glasgow, that
this land reverted to the heirs of the persons who gave it lo
the congregation.

The preaching of Whiteficld was productive of much good
o many individuals, inasmuch gs fnany were converted by
it; but it certainly did more harm thay £ood to the Pres-
byterian congregations in this 8nd the adjoining countjes,
many of whicl were rent in twain by the dissensions that it
engendered. This was the case with, Nettingham and Rock
churches. But little of interest to the genera! reader oo
curred in the history of the Nottingham church ] the
arrival of Whitefield, at whijch time the meeting-house stood
on the brow of the hill a short distance northwest of the
village of Rising Sun.,  After this dieruption of the church
{1741), the new side (as those whe adherad to the doctrine
of Whitefield were called) erected another faeeting-house in
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disiance southwest of the centre of the village of Rising
Bun, and near the brook west of which the New 8ide Church

was buill. It was no doubt g log building, for there wers /

few of any other kind st that time, Though the place
where it stood is forgotien, it maitars little, for the reputa-
tion of the master and many of his pupils is 50 jllustrious
that it will endure while sound theology, brilliant scientific
acquirements and pure statesmanship are respected and
appreciated. This academy was one of the most celebrated
of ita time, and its history is in striking eontrast with that
of the free schoal of this county, that probably was cotem-
porary with it, and proves the superiority of the voluntary
over the involuntary system of education quite as well as
the auccess of the Presbyterian church Proves its superiority
over the Established one.

As early as 1723 the colonial Jegiclature passed an act to
encourage education and also named a board of vieitors in
ench county, who were to hold office during life, and who
were authorized to perpetuate the boerd by fitling vacancies
a8 they might oceur, by death or otherwise, from the “prin-
cipal and better sort of inhabitants” The board of visitors
for thia county were Colonel John Ward, Major John Dow-
dall, Colenel Benjamin Pearce, Mr. Stephen Knight, Mr.
Edward Jackson, Mr. Richard Thirompson, and Mr. Thomas
Johnson, Jr. These gentlemen were authorized to purchase
one hundred acres of Jand for school purposes, and were
invested with full power gnd suthority to employ teachers
and atiend 1o all things that in their Judgment were neces-
tary and proper io successfully ingugurate and carry on the
enterprise.  They accordingly purchased & hundred acres
of land on the south side of the Bohemia River, in Sassafras
Feock, which included the point nexi ebove the Bohemia
Bridge, which was long known 8s Free School Point. It is
believed that they started a achool there; how long it lasted,
who tanght it, end who were taught in it, after diligent
investigation has not been ascertained. £o little attention
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cessor, was inharmonious, and in June, 1789, some of his
congregation preferred charges against him for “irregular,
imprudent and indecent conduct,” and after a trial which
occupied the presbytery three days, he was found guilty and
suspended tiil the next October. Having in the meantime
expressed much sorrow and penitence lie was restored, and

_ subsequently dismissed from the care of the presbylery.

During this time the congregations mwaintained their sepa-
rate organizations: the First, or Old Side, worshiping in the
chureh near the road northwest of the village of Rising Sun,
and the New Side, in the meeting-house which strod in the
graveyard ou the porth side of the road west of the creek

In 1796 the congregations having been rennited resolved
to build a new meeting-house, but they disagreed about its
location, and it wasnet until 1800—presbytery, at their re-
quest, having in the meantime sent & committee there to
endeavor to unite the congregations upon the choice of 8
site—that the location of the present house, which sume
years ago was enlarged and improved, was begun. The
work of erecting the new church on account of the poverty
of the eangregation was an herculean task, and in 1803 they
obtained an act of the lsgislature authorizing them to insti-
tute a lottery for the purpose of cbiaining the requisite funds
to complete it. Samuel Miller, Robert Evans, Thomas Wil-
liems, David Patton, James Cummings, James Sims, John
Porter end Jonathan Hartshorn are the nnmes of the com-
missioners designated in the act for the purpose of puiting
the Iottery in operation. Their bond for $3,000, conditicned
for the faithful performance of their duties, may be seen
among the Jand records of the county. On the 26th of Sep-

_tember, 1801, Andrew Ramsay conveyed two acres of land

to James Evans, Robert Evans, David Edmiston and James
Cummings, who were then trusiees, and who puarchased it
from him for the use of the church for £15. On the same
day Captain William Johnson also conveyed two acres to
the same persons, which had been purchased Jor the same
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was paid & thé land that a commission was appointed by
the court in 1784 to ascertain and mark its boundaries,
which at that time had become so obscure that they were
found with much diffieulty. The school visitors at this
time were Peter Lawson, John D. Thempson, Rev, William
Thompson, John Ward, Bidney George, and William
Maihiews. Rev. Willinm Thompson was at that time rector
of Bt Ricphen’s Parich, and Sidney George was a lawyer
whe resided in Middle Neck. John Dockery Thompson
was one of the justices of the court, and was no doubt a
descendant of the Thompson who married the danghter of
Augusting Hermen, from which il would seem that the
vacancies in the board of visitors had been filled from time
to time ns they occurred by selections from the #principal
und better sort of inhabitants.”

After Mr. Finley's removal to Princeton the new church
rapidly declined and never had another settled pastor,
Lhuug-h it existed for many years as o eeparate church
organization.

In 1745 Rev. James Steel became pastor of the Old Bide

Church. The length of his pastorate cannot new be ascer-
tined with certainty, but he probably remained in charge
of the church till 1753, when he emiprated {0 the Cum-
berland Valley, which was then the western frontier of
Fennsylvania.
_ 1n 1762 the congregution called the Rev. John Beard. Hs
is believed to have been u native of Ireland. His relatione
with the congregation were not harmonious, notwithstand-
ipg which he ministered to them ti}] 1771, when he was
deposed from the ministry. His will was proved in 1802.
He resided at “ College Green,” which he devised to hissons,
dames, Hugh and George.

1n 1786 the two congregutions, both of which had forsome
Yeurs been. depending upon supplies, united in a call to Rev.
James Munro, which he accepled, and was installed in
August of that year. His pastorate, Hke that of his prede-
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purpose for the same price. Fach of these tracis are de-
scribed as being part of a larger tract called Ephesus, and
the church is designated in the act authorizing the lottery

" a3 the Presbyterian Church st Ephesus, though it was

known upon the records of preshytery at that time as West
Nottingham.

Rev, Jarmes Magraw was installed pestor of this church
April 34,1804, and continued to minister to the congregation
until the time of his death, which occured in 1835, With the
exception of Rey. Hugh Jones, who ministered so long to
North Bassafras Parish, Dr. Magraw was probably the most
influential and successful minister that ever exercised the
pastoral office in this county.

TheUpper West Nottinghawm ¢hurch wasorganized in 1810,
cut of & part of this congregation thet was too far distant to
aitend after the removal of the church from Rising Bun.
Mr. Magraw became pestor of the new organization, and
gaveit one-third of his time until 1321, when he resigned. In
1822 he became paster of the Preshyterian church in Charles-
town, which had recently been orgenized mainly through
bhis efforts and those of Rev. Mr. Grabam then pastor of the
Rock church. Mr. Magraw also preached sometimes during
the summer season to the raftemen at Port Deposit, who at
that time were probably as much in need of the gospel es
sny other ciass of pecple in the world.

He wes & fine looking, athletic men, end hed a stentorian
voire; and iseaid by those who bave heard him,to have
been an eloguent and powerful preacher. He cered so
littls for the conventionalities of society that if the weather
was very warm he would take off his coat and preach in his
shirt-sleeves; or if the church was net properly warmed,
re was too often the case in winter time, he would preach with
his cloak on. He took an active part in the erection of the
fort st Port Deposit just previous to the burning of Havre
de Girace; and was at ihe fortand harangued the soldiare
when the British were burning and pillaging the village of

1z
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Lapidum, Tt was during his pastorate, and mainly by hia
exertions, that the Nottingham Academy, which had become
extinct after the depariure of Mr. Finley, was revived.

In 1812 the legislature of the State made an appropriation
for an academy in each county. Through the agency of
Dr. Magraw, the peopla of West Nottingham and vicinity
had a board of trustees elected and a building, which was
intended to be part of a larger adifice, erected, and secured
the State appropriation of eight hundred dollars. Dr. Ma-
graw was the first president of the board of trusteed

Reuben H. Davis was the first principal. He had charge
of the aeademy for two or three years, and wna succeeded
by William McCrimmen, Ha was principal ons year, and
waa succeeded by Mr. Isnse Bird, and he by Samuel Turney,
each of whom acted as principal for one year.

In 1820 Dr. Magraw was chosen principal, and remained
in charge until the time of his death. Dr. Magraw was sue-
ceeded by his son, Sawuel M. Magraw, who continued in
‘charge until 1840. He was followed by Rev. George Bur-
rows, who had charge of the imstitution for ten years
George K. Bechtel, A. M., the present (1881) principal, was
elected in 1862, This academy has sustained quiteas good
a reputation as'its predecessor, which was established by
Rov. Samuel Fintey. At least twenty-four ministers of the
gospel, and a large number of other distinguished men whe
hove added lustre to the bench and the bar, and many ethers
who have graced the medical proféssion, have also recsived
& part or all of their education at this inatitution.

The Rock congregation, like that at Nottingham, was
divided by the controversy that arose from Whitefield's
preaching. The new church was orgenized in 1741, and
this led to the erection of the meeting-house at Sharp's grave-
yard, which is about a mile north of Fair Hiil Very
little is known of thia church, except that it was a frame
building covered with clapboards. Traditien says that it
was removed to a farm in the neighborhood, and converted
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into a barn. A¥hen the Old wul New Sides united, in 1761,
they worshiped in this hiousa for a short time.

The New Side congregation was without a paster for ele-
ven years, when they obtained the services of Rev. James
Finley, who was a younger brother of the Rev. Samuel Fin+
lcy, and who was installed pastor of this church in 1752
Mr. Finlay also had charge of the Presbyterian church in
Etkton for a few years after Lie became pastor of the Rock
Church, but in 1760 the pastorsl relution was dissolved,
probably on account of the reunion of the old and new sides
of the original Rock congregation, which took place the
following year, During part of the time of the division of
this church the Rev. James McDowell had charge of the Old
Side branch, which coutinued to worship in the old church
at the atone graveyard® near Lewisville, Pa. During his

= A rombatone in this graveyard coutaing this inseription: *'In memoﬁ
of Hugh Mahatfey, who was murdeved Nevember L8th, 1747 He liv
in New Munater, vii the weat dido of liig Elk Creak, about a mils south
of wlhere the rvad from Fuir il to Newack crossas that stream, aud wad
a blackamith, Tradition saith thac a parson wiho lived with him became
ennmored of his wite, and tliat he aud she eotersd into & plot te kill bim,
which they executed in thin wise: While Mahatfey and wife were seated
near the fire, early in the erening, the cowanlly murlerer, who bad been
momentanily absent from tha room, stealthily entered it and asruck Ms
haftey with au axe. The blow kuocked him senngless to the floor, but did
not Xill lim. Ap apprentice boy, who was in bed in the lofc of the liouse,
heand the noise, and coming down staims, the guilty pair compelled him
ta dispasch his master, threatening, if he refused, to tfo it themnaelves and
charge lim with it and bave him Langed. The body was then buried in
the smith shop, whers, aftar the Iapse of sume weeks, it was fourd, in
this way: Bome of the [riends of the dered man, who meeided at some
Ai , hearing of his disap come to wasist Lin neighburs in ro-
moving the mystery that enshrowded it, sud hitched ona of thelr horses
in the sliop near where the vorpas of the murdered mnn was buried. The
hurse, knawing by instinet: that something was buried there, or being im-
palient of restraint and wishing to get loose, pawed the earth away from
tha corpse, which of conrse was discoversd. Nu record of the srial ia now
extant, but traditin says thue the guilty man escaped, thut the cqually
guilty woman aud oy wore tried for the murer, aud that the boy was
hanged,  Another one of the tumbstones iu this graveyard contaius an
fmaye of a panther chiseled upon it in bass-ruliel. ~ Another one contains
the figura of & ruan's hand, the thumb and forefingar of which are repre-
sented od bolding, in onler to exhibit to view, the FOGR UF DIAMONDS.
Why these curlony levices wore placed om tomlmtones i » mystevy that
will probably never bo unraveled. for tha inscriptions on them shed
oo light upon it.

o 1 AT 3 Fo T b8

L



(R

{
i

A

pree

. HISTORY OF CECHL COUNTY. 285

A
pastorate he tanght the classicel school which had been
founded at New London some years before by the Syuvod of
Philadelphis, but which was removed to his residence, about
a mile southwest of Lewisville, in 1752, This school was
removed to Newark, Delaware, in 1767, and was chartered
by the Penns two years afterwards. 1t was the germ from
which Delaware College sprang. Mr. Finley's pastoral con-
nection with this congregation extended over a period of
thirty years, apd so much was he endeared to his congrega-
tion, that it suceessfully resisted his efforts to obtain a disso-
lution of the pastoral relation snd his dismissal from ihe
Presbytery of New Casile for some years. He finally ap-
pealed to the synod, which set aside the action of the pres-
bytery, and he removed to western Pennsylvania, in 1783.
Eighteen years before that time he had visited the western
frontier, accompanied by Philip Tanner, one of the elders of
hischurch,wholived in Nottingham, near Mount Rocky. Mr.
Finley is said to have been the first preacher {except those
who had been there ss chaplaius of the army) that preached
west of the Alleghany Mountains, Bome years after this the
synod of Philadelphia sent him to western Pennsylvania as
& missionary. While there upon one of these visits, he pur-
chased a farm in Fayette County, Fa,, and in 1772, placed his
son Ebenezer, then a youth of fourtecn years of age, in charge
of it. Mr. Finley waa twice married. His second wife was
e daughter of Robert Evans, = sister of Captain John Evans,
who owned the rolling-mill west of Cowantown. He resided,
during part of his pastorate, on the White Hall ¥arm near
Andora, or Poplar Hill, as it was formerly called.

It was during Mr. Finley's pastorate that the present
church, which a few years age was remodeled, was erected,
&s is shown by the petition of Robert Macky and George
Leawson, which they presented to the court in 1766, stating
that the congregation bad purchased a piece of land in 1762
from Michael Wallace and David Elder, near where the
westernmost branch of Elk River erossed the road leading
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other peoples conveyances, and thet his parishoners had to
see him safely away from church.

Mr. Burion was succeeded by Rev, Francis Hindman,
He was a pative of this county and spent his boyhood &
mile or so sonthwest of Ceeil Paper Mill. He was & cooper
in sarly life, but subsequently studied for the ministry, and
was called by this church and the church at Kew Louden
in 1790. Owing to the fact that he was accused of conduct
unbecoming & minister of the gospe! he was never installed.
He resided for some time in a large, old-fashioned stone
house that stood until recently about three-fourths of a mile
northwest of Centre school-house. While there he taught
s clessical school, which he subsequently removed io
Newark, Delaware, where he continued to teach for many
years.

Rev. John E. Latta, who is remarkable for being one of
four brothers all of whom were ministets of the gospel,
succeeded Mr. Hindman and remained till 1800, when he
accepted B ¢all from the congregation at New Castle. He
was never installed as pastor of the Rock Church.

Mr. Latia was succeaded by the Rev. Bamuel Leacock,
who ministered to the congregation as stated supply from
1800 to 1804. He was followed by Rev. John Wangh, who
at that time was principal of Newark Academy, and who
officiated as stated supply from 1804 to 1806.

After being without s pastor for twenty-six years the
congregation, in connection with New London, gave & call
to Rev. Robert Graham, on the 12th of September, 1508,
Hewas to give the Rock congregation one-third of his time.
He was installed pastor December 13th, 1802, He resided
at New London and had charge of the united congregations
natil the time of his death, on the 5ih of November, 1835,
During his long pastorate he frequently preached at Charles-
town and was instrumental in starting the first Sunday-
school at that place. In 1803 the church needed a new
roof and other repairs, and such was the poverty of the con-

gregation that they obtained an act of the legislature .
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from Nottingham to Christiana Bridge, and had erected a
meeting-house thereon for public worship, and praying
that the said house might be registered. This was in
accordance with the act of Parliament requiring all places
of public worship to be registered by the civil authorities.

Though the first meeting-house at Louisville had been
erected previous to 1725, it wus not till fifty.one years after-
wards that they obtained a deed for the land upon which it
stood, This land was donated to the congregation, which
was then called “ Upper Elk Erection,” by David Wallace,
but for some reason it was not deeded to them. Wallace
disposed of his property in 1736, but reserved two acres
which he had given to the church, ond subeequently re-
moved to Xent County, Delaware, where he died. Oan the
216t of May, 1776, Solemon Wallace, his son and heir, “in
order to make good und confirm the generous and pious in-
tentions of his father,” deeded the land to the trustees of the
<hurch, who were as [oliows: Philip Tanner, of Chaster
County; David Macky, John Lawson and Thomas Mu#it of
Cecil County.

After Mr. Finley removed to the West, the congregation
‘was without a stated pastor for twenty-six years, during
which they depended upon supplies; often they had no
preaching for months at a time. Mr. Finley was succeeded
by Rev. John Burton. He was a Scotchmnn and joined the
Presbytery of New Castle in 2776, and in the fall of that
year was called as pastor of the Rock Church, being at
that time serving it, as stated supply by the eppoint
ment of presbytery. He remained about a year, when
be declined the call they had given him, and accepted
one from the congregation of 8t. George's, Delaware. Rev.
Mr. Johns states in his history of this church that he
bad & little farm advertised for sale, and when a cer-
tain party went to buy it be told them it was a wet, sorry
soil nnd they would starve on it. He issaid to have been
0 absent-minded as often to Grive home from church in
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authorizing them to raise the money for those purposes by
means of a lottery. No persons are named in the act to
earty it into effect, and no bond for the performance of that
duty can be found among the records of the equnty. It
therefore scems proballe that the scheme was never put
into operation.

This method of raising money for church purposes may
secin highly repreliensille at this time, but it was not con-
sidered {0 be so then.  As early as 1791 the vestry of Nerth
Sassafras Parislt had resoried to the same method, and fora
long time subsequently whenever money was needed for any
purpose of publie utilily, such as the digging of a public
well, or the founding of & village library, this method of
raising money was resorled to.  Those who are disposed io
find fault with our forefathers for indulging in this practice,
should remember that they acted under the sandion of law,
and ihat many professing Christians of the present fime
find meaus to evade ¥, by resorting to cunningly devised
schemes which are guite as demoralizing and tincertain as
lotteries.

The church at the head of Christiana was not divided by
the schism that resulted from Whitefield's preaching, but its
pastor, the Rev. George Gillespie, for a short time favored
the New Side, for the reason that he thought those who ad-
hered to it had been treated with too much severity by the
other side. Mr. Gillespie died in 1760. He was pastor of
Head of Christiana church for forty-seven years, and was
suceeeded by Rev. Johin McCrery, who, in 1769, was installed
pastor of the united churches of Head of Christiana and
White Clay creck. Mr. McCreary was s zealons and popu-
lar preacher, and well worthy o be the successor of Charles.
Tennent, who preceded lim as pastor of White Clay Creek
church,

Having thus briefly glanced at the ecclesiastical history
of these ancient churchiés, a few words respecting the man-
ners and customs of those who worshiped in them will not
be inappropriate.
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built of logs and had no fire-places in them. The churches

A \/’ The first Presbyterian meeting-houses were generally

were far apart, snd the congregations that worshiped in
them were seattered over Jarge districts of country; some of
these people probably treveled s distance of twelve or fifteen
miles in order to atiend meeting. Many of the original
members of the Head of Christiana Church were members
of the church at New Castle, and no doubt worshiped there
before the organization of the former church. It is said that
some pious young men who lived near Deer Croek, in Har-
ford County, were in ihe habit of crossing the Susquehganna
River in a boet which they used for that purpose and kept
moored to the Tiver bank, near the mouth of that stream,
and then walking the remainder of the way in order o
attend the Nottingham Church. As the first meeting:
houses had no fire-places in them they must have bean cold,
and being poorly lighted by windows must have necessarily
been somewhat cheerless and glooray. Bud the ancestors of

any of the people who worshipedin them had been hunted
like wild beasts by Claverhouse and his dragoons among

| the highlands of tiand, snd many of them were afterward
! judicielly murdered by the infamous Jeffzies. They had

! ~worsHiped Gpon thelf Dative heatha and in the seclusion of
“._ their native glens ut the gilent hour of midnight, with sen-
tries posted to give notice of the approach of the hired sol-
diery, who, if they had found them, would, with merciless
fury, have shot them down like dogs, or consigned them to
the keeping of the gibbet or the prison. It meant some-
thing to be & Christian then, and the stories of these wronge
and persecutiona were yetfresh inthe minds of the founders
of ihese old churches. No wonder they made no provision
for warming the interior of the honses in which they wor-
shiped. The ardor end zeal of their religious convictions
made it unnecessary, end had this not been the case, they
were & stern, uncompromising sect that were ever ready to
endure any hardship or submit to any sacrifice in order to
8
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enjoy the privilege of worshiping God as they pleased. Bo
it was only after the erection of the meeting-houses that
superseded the original ones, that any provisien was made
for the comfort of the congregetions in the winter time.
Then a small house in which the session met, which was
called the session-house, was usuplly erected near the
churches. A rousing fire would be made in it on Sabbath
morning, and those who wished to do so had an epportunity
of warming themselves before they entered the meeting-
house. Foot-stoves were introduced iu the Jatter part of the
last century. They were simply tin boxes with lids, and
were filled with live coals from the seseion-house fire, and
placed on the fioor underncath the feet of the worshipers.
The pastors of these churches in the early days preached
twice every Sabbath tothe same congregation, there being
an interval of an hour or so between the morning and after-
noon services, during which the congregation partook of &
slight repast, which they generally carried with them to
chorch to satisfy their hunger. The members of these
churches nearly all lived in rude log-cebins, which were
generally built in a valley near a spring. They were 2 fru-
gal, industrious and pious people, different in many respects
from those who had settled in the southern part of the
eounty end in Elk Neck. They raised their own wool and -
flax, from which they manufactured their wearing spparel.
They planted large apple and peach orchards, from the fruit
of which they distilled their own liquor. Thase of them
wholived in Nottingham and New Munster disposed of their
surpius wheat at Christiana Bridge, which was then a place
of much importance, and contained & populatien of prob-
ably about four hundred. Their method of iransporting
their wheat to this place may seem odd to those who live in
this age of railroads and steamboats. When they wished to
send their wheat to market they put it into bags or sacks,
which were large enough to hold two or three bushels each.
These sacks were placed upon pack-saddles on the backs of

120

MIDWAY INN

V4 MILE ABOVE CONOWINGO DAM

BiLL WEBRE, Proprietor

Specializing In Sea Food

BEER WINE
FISHING LICENSE

LIQUORS FINE FOOD
CONOWINGO, MD.

bRy - Tl




S—

HISTORY OF CECIL COUNTY. 201

borses, upon one of which a lad was mounted, who led two
or three of the animals beside the one on which he rode, and
thus the curious cavaleade journeyed to the place of its
destination.

Another custom that has long sinee fallen into disuse was
much in vogue among these people, namely, the irrigation
of the mendows along the streams, which were so fertilized
by this means that they produced a reasonably good erop
of natura] grasses, which were eut for hay, where otherwise
pot a blade would have grown. Timothy and clover were
not introduced at this time, and it was very desirsbls to
have as much natural meadow as possible upon each plan-
tation ; this no doubt led to the ill-shape of some of the
early grants of land. The methed of irrigating a piece of
land was to construct 4 dam across a stream and turn the
water into an artificial channel, constructed in such a loca-
tion that by letting the water out of it, through openings a
short distancs apart, the land between the original and arti-
ficial channels could readily be covered with it. This was
practiced for many years by the first settlers in the upper
parl of the county wherever there was a stream Iarge enough
to admit of it. Many of the races that were constructed for
this purpese are yet to be seen. Lime was hard to obtain,
and liming wag not resorted to as & means of enriching the
80il; indeed, it is probable that its use as a fertilizer was
unknown to many of the pecple of that day. Owing to
what would now be considered a very bad system of farm-
ing, but which was the best their circumstances sllowed
them io pursue, the soil on their farms became impover-
ished and many of them emigrated to the fertile valleys of
the Carolinas and Virginia.

This was the case with many of the Alexanders snd
others of New Munster, who, about the Faar 1746, emigrated
to Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, TRose of them
mmm time to time by

others of the same ifamily until, it is said, they were at the
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long remembered and venerated by the old residents of the
neighborhood, on aceount of tradition connecting it with
the parents of the hero of New Orleans.

The emigrants from this county were the founders of the
seven Presbyterian churches that existed in Mecklenburg
County, in 17565, and 5o great was the interest taken by the
Presbytery of New Castle in the spiritual welfare of these
churches and others in that part of the Stats, that they fre-
quently sent their ministers there to preach the gospel to
them, the other members of the Presbytery supplying the
pulpits of the missionaries durin g their absence. Hev. John
McGrery, during the latter part of his pastorate at Head
of Christiana, is said to have been absent from his charge,
in the latter part of his iife, engaged in missionary labor of
this kind one-fourth of his time, Once, when on a visit to
his old parishioners in North Caroling, he was tnken sick
and remained there nine months,

1t is worthy of mention in this counection as an interest-
ing historical fact, that Doctor David Ramsay, the author
of & histery of the American Hevolution, though not a
Dative of this eounty, at one time practiced medicine at the
head of Bohemia Diver, and was one of the large number of
eminent men whe emigrated from (fecil County 16 South
Carolina.

A few years after the emigratien to North Carolina begun,
& similar one commenced from this region to the couniry
west of the Alleghany mountains. Many of the emigrants
settled along 1he Ohio River and its tributaties in south-
western Pennsylvania and nortliwesiern Virginia. The exist-
ence of the sirong Presbyterian element that has always
pervaded saicety in that section of country, is readily
traceable to the early Presbyterian churches, whose history
is so closely blended with the early history of this county.
These emigrants and others of the eame class from the
southern purts of Chester, Lancsster, and York counties,
were the flvst permanend settlers west of the Alleghany moun-
tains.
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time of the commencement of the Revolutionary war the
most numerous peuple of ane name in that county. Among
& other Iamiliés thal eniigral rom this county to North
Caroling, where many of them and their descendants after-
wards distinguished themselves by the active part they took
in the affairs of the Presbyterian Church and the Revolu.
tionary struggle, were the Polke, Brevards, and very proba-
bly the Pattons and others, members of whose families wers
active participants in the convention that promulgated the
ecklenburg Declaration of Independence, in 1775. Abra-
ham Alexanderwas  president of that conventig
McRiitl Alexander was 1ts secretary. Doctor Ephraim
revard was charrman of the committee which drafted the

- Declaration. He was probably a son of the John Breverd

who was one of the elders of the Broad Creek Church in this
county. John McKuitt Alexander was horn in Ceeil County,
and went to North Carolins in 1754, when he was 21 years
of age. He was a iailor by trade, ut_became 8 sqcveyor,
and was o6 01 the leading patriots in his adopted State in
the irying fithes of the Revoluhonary waF, when it was
SVEFTGh by the Brilish ATmy sod many professed patriots

became traitors. Thres others of the Alexander family
were gighers of th_g_=___ﬁ_g¢_:.l:le}£b!1rg Declaration, as was_also
il Thomas Tolk, a granduncle o7 é¥President James K.
POl Whose Tather is believed to have emigrated from this
county and gettled in North Carolina.

There iz some reason to believe that the father of
ex-President Andrew Jackson was among the number of
those who emigrated to North Carolina. Tradition says
that he lived in an old log-house that stood near the head
of Persimmon Run, just east of Cowantown, in the
fourth district, and that he went with a large number of
other emigrants from this county a few years enterior to the
Revolutionary war. The o.d house in which he lived,
owing to the fact that its walls were not perpendicular, was
called the “Bendy House.” The place where it stood was
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The emigration from these districts continued for many
years. During a period of twenty years, which probably
commencad about the time of Rev. James Finley's first visit
to the Weat, it is said that as many as thirty-four families,
members of the Rock congregstion, chiefly young married
persons, emigrated to the valley of the Youghiogheny, and
settled along that stream and in the valleys along the other
tributaries of the Ohio River. These familiss all settled
within the bounds of the old Redstone Preshytery, and
twenty-two of the heads of them became ruling elders in
the churches of which it was composed. These Presbyterians
made an indelible impression upon soeiety in the region
where they setled, which is yet plainly discernible there,and
which while soviety lasts will remain as & witness of the
untiring energy and unflagging zeal of those who planted
the standard of Presbyterianism in the Western wilderness,

Bui the emigration from this county to western Pennsyl-
vanin was not confined to New Munster, and many of the
inhabitants, generally Presbyterians, smigrated there from
Nottingham. Among the latter were members of another
familyof Alexandérs, whoss ancestors settled in Nottingham
in the early part of the last centiry, utd whe tesufipised *
to-irave Belonged T the Eme olhn fii Soiland 16 Which the
emeestors ulthe “Alexandérs ol New Munster belonged.

gh Alexander, s member of this family, married Mag.
gret Edmisson, and migrated to wWestefh Pennsylvania as
edrly ms 1740, e Edmisson family owned a tract of
land, eontaining 980 acres, at the mouth of Stony Run at
this time. This land included the site of the mill near the
Junction of that stream with the Octoraro Creek.

These emigrants, having descended from a hardy and
restless race, transmitted their peculiar characteristics to
their offspring, who, when civilization encroached upon
them and was about te circumscribe their accustomed liber-
tiea and subject them somewhat to the conventionalities and
restraints of refined society, emigrated to Kentucky, as did
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L3

‘ the same class that had emigrated to Virginia and the Car-

olinas. In this way Kentucky and Tennesses received the

influence of Presbyterianism that has made an indelible

: impression upon the character of their citizens.

A Drring this peried of the history of the county, the state
; ! of society wes not very good, and a few of the old records of
the court that are now extant show that licentiounsness and
drunkenness prevailed to a considerable extent among the
lower classes, most of whom were indentured servants or
redemptioners. The records of New Castle Presbytery con-
tain but very faw references to matters of this kind, whicl,
inasmuch as the Presbylerians were very austere and also
rigid disciplinacians, Ieads us to beliove that few breaches
of decorum were committed by their membership.

Slavery prevailed to some extent throughout the county,
but the slaves were not numerous in that part of it north of
the Elk River. Rev. James Finley had a few of them, in
whose religious welfare he is said to have been much inter-
teted, always having them present at family worship and
catechising them with hisown children. This was probatly
the case with the members of his and the other Preshyterian
churches,
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In 1721 Adain Short, whe lived upon a tract of land
called Green Meadows, which was somewhere on the borders
of Welsh Tract, complained to the council of Maryland
that shortly before he had been waited on by Davy Evang

of the Welsh Tract, who was accompanied by eight or ten

men, and lhad two horses harnessed to a log sledge, who
demanded possession of his premises, which he refused to
give them. Apprehending trouble he went to see a Mary.
land magistrate, and found when he returned that his
visitors had been so expeditious in building a log-house
that they had raised it all round three logs high during his
absence. He protesied against their acticn, but they finished
the house and gave possession to ene Rice Jenking. Teo
avoid trouble Short removed to another plantation which
he had on Christiana Creek, where he then resided, first
securely fastening the doors of his dwelling and out-house.
Returning some time afterwards to the house in which he
formerly resided lie found the dwelling occupied and the
out-house used for a tailor shop.

On the 2d of June, 1722, Samuel DBrice presented a
petition to the court ofthis county, stating that he “had been
an inhabitant of this'county, on New Connaught Mauor, for
about nine years past, and Lad always quietly and peaceably
paid ail taxes and duiys to this county, since an inhabitant
within the jurisdiction of this court. But so it is, may it
please your worships, that onn the 11th of this instant (May)
Isaac Taylor the surveyor for the county of Chester of the
Province of Pennsylvania, with others* assisting him came
and surveyed close to your petitioner’s fance, so as to render
your petitioner's setilement altogether unconvenient for the
use of your petitioner and greatly to Lis prejudice.and further
that your petitioner is very credibly informed that Daniel
Smith, George Sleyter, Jamea Bond, John Bond, Edward

*The other persims were Elish Gateliell, William Brawn, John Church-
s, Richard Brown, Roger Kirk and Isaza Taylor's son, as stated in
the records of the courcil,

CHAPTER XIX.

Border war—Davy Evans dispossesses Adam Short—FPetition of Sam-
uel Brice—Arrest of Tsaze Taylor and others—Azreement Letween the
heirs of William Penn and Lord Baltimore respecting the settlement of
the bymndaries—Proceedings in cliancery—Renewal of border war—
Thomas Cresap—Order of the King in Council—The temporary boundary
line—Dcree of Chanceller IHardwich—Diary of John Watson—Cape
Henlopen—The  trass-peningulac line—1death of Chavles Calvert—
Another agreement—Ioention of due north line—Difficulty of the work
—Mason and Dixon—They land in Philadelphia—Latitude of that city—
Aceount of their labors for the nexs live years—Re-location of the north-
enst corner of Maryiznd.

Arrer William Penn took possession of his territories on
the Delaware several interviews took place beiween him
and the lord proprietary of Maryland in reference to the
adjustment of the boundaries of their respective provinces,
but inasmuch as they had no particular bearing on the
history of this county and were as fuiile a3 the efforts that
had preceded them, it is not important that they should be
noticed here.

From about the time of the disappearance of George
Talbut in 1887, to the time of the death of William Penn,
which took place in 1718, the good understanding between
the two provinces had been maintained by a variety of
temporary expedients, which were every now and ihen
frustrated by some act of border aggression.

This was notably the cass with the people living on the

f \ borders of this county, A4 this ime there were very few
gettlements in Peansylvania west of the Susquelianna
River, and the people living in the lower.part of the penin-
sula seem to have Leen more pescefully disposed than
those on the borders of this county.

122

—

298 HISTORY OF CECIL COUNTY.

Long, John Allen, Charles Allen, and saveral others, are upon
complying with ¢ Pennaylvania survey and title, although they
have considersble time since complied with and allowed
themselvus inhabitants of this county, all which your peti-
tioner conceives is not only an agrievance to your petitioner
but to the public interest of this government, and his Lord-
ships good rule, and loudly calls for redress.”

This petition was favorably received, and the court
ordered that = precept be made out and directed to the
sheriff ordering him to arrest Taylor and the cthers for
committing a breach of the peace; whereupon, William
Howell, the sheriff, called out the posse comitatus and arrested
Taylor, who, it is stated jn Penn’s breviat, was imprisoned
probably in the jail at Court-House Peint, but possibly at
Annapolis. While he was confined in prisen, Gatchell
visited him, whereupon the authorities of Maryland alse
arrested and imprisoned him.

This outrageous canduct of Evans and Taylor and their
friends was the tmore reprehensible from the fact that it waa
in viglation of & compact or agreement between the governors
of the two provinees made in 1718, at a meeting held at the
house of Colonel Hinson. At this meeting Governor Hart
of Maryland, alleged that Nottingham was in that provinee,
and that the people thersof had often petitioned to be taken
under the government of Maryland. Governor Keith re-
plied, that New Munster belonged to Pennsylvania, and the
people living there had asked to be taken under the protec-
tion of that province. It was thereupon agreed that the
inhabitants of these tracts, ard all others, should be left in
possession of their land, and sll other grants should be re-
spected until the dispute was settled,

The arrest of Taylor and Gatchell coming to the
knowledge of the Governor of Pennsylvania, he at the
instance of the council, remonstrated with the authorities of
Maryland, who referred the matter 1o Daniel Delaney, then
attorney-general, who gave an elaborate opinion on the sub-
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